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AGRICORE UNITED PROIg{lﬁ.I{C_JESRECé)RD SECOND QUARTER

Winnipeg, Manitoba (June 7, 2007) - Agricore United (TSX:AU) announced today earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") of $45.5 million for the six months ending April 30, 2007.
The $30.8 million increase over the same period last year is atiributable to significantly improved segment
operating results and tightly controlled operating, general and administrative (OG&A) expenses.

“Second quarter results are usually a sign of things to come in the year, and these results show the true
momentum in Agricore United's operations,” says Brian Hayward, Chief Executive Officer. “Not only have we
seen a strong recovery in sales of crop inputs, we are also seeing year-to-year improvements in grain
shipments.”

Grain shipments for the six months increased by 121,000 tonnes to 5.5 million tonnes, an increase of just
over two percent. Agricore United's ratio of industry grain shipments for the trailing twelve months ended
April 30, 2007, increased to 34.6 percent, compared to a 33.6 percent market share reported for its fiscal
year ended October 31, 2006. Meanwhile, grain handling expenses for the current fiscal year to date
decreased by $6.7 million (or 8.9 percent) as the resuit of continuing improvements in operating efficiencies.
With the higher volumes, margins and reduced expenses, EBITDA in the grain segment was a record $32.8
millien for the quarter, contributing to EBITDA for the fiscal year to date of $55.7 million, or almost 40 percent
more than the same period last year.

Crop Production Services (*CPS”) sales have also seen a strong recovery in the second quarter of 2007,
with EBITDA of $10.2 million for the quarter ending April 30, 2007, $14.2 million higher than the loss of $4
million reported in the same quarter last year. Increased sales activity in all product lines including seed,
crop nutrition and crop protection products resulted in gross profit and revenue from services of $35.1 million
for the quarter and $44.0 million for the first six months of 2007. The reported $16.4 million increase in gross
profit and revenue from services for the six month period is primarily attributable to higher fertilizer volumes
and margins in 2007 compared to the same period in 2006 as a result of heightened demand and improved
commodity prices in the market this year.

Record earnings continued in Agricore United's Livestock Services segment, with feed volumes increasing
by 293,000 tonnes to 813,000 tonnes during the six months ending April 30, 2007. Gross profit and net
revenue in this segment increased to $20.4 million for the quarter, contributing to the total of $41.2 millicn
reported for the first six months of 2007. The increase in gross profit is due mainly to the acquisition of Hi-
Pro Feeds ("Hi-Pro”) which closed in August of 2006. After the additional OG&A expenses associated with
Hi-Pro, the company reported a 48 percent increase in EBITDA to a record $15.4 million for the six month
period ending April 30, 2007.

Legal, financial and other advisory costs associated with the response to the Saskatchewan Wheat Pool
(“SWP") bid and related negotiations with James Richardson International Limited were $5.4 million for the
current quarter, with total costs for the six month period ending April 30, 2007 at $8.2 million. On May 29,
2007, SWP announced it had taken up more than 75 percent of the issued and outstanding Limited Voting
Commoen Shares of Agricore United.

“It was a long process to get to the end of the takeover bid, but we are now ready to move to the next phase
of integrating SWP and Agricore United," says Hayward. "A good dea! of planning has gone into the
integration to date, and the level of cooperation among employees in both organizations has been
commendable.”

Agricore United is one of Canada's leading agri-businesses with headquarters in Winnipeg, Manitoba and
extensive operations and distribution capabilities across western Canada, as well as operations in the United
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States and Japan. Agricore United uses its technology, services and logistics expertise to leverage its
network of facilities and connect agricultural customers to domestic and international customers and
suppliers. The company's operations are diversified into sales of crop inputs and services, grain
merchandising, livestock production services and financial services. Agricore United's commen shares are
traded on the Toronte Stock Exchange under the symbol "AU",
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2007 Q2 Highlights

Record EBITDA — Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA™) of $45.5
million for the six months ending April 30, 2007 increased by more than three times compared to the
$14.7 million reported in 2006 due to significantly improved segment operating results and tightly
controlled Operating, General & Administrative (*OG&A”) expenses. For the trailing twelve month period
ended April 30, 2007, the Company reported record EBITDA of $171.4 million, excluding the full impact
of the recovery of crop nutrition sales and margins not expected until the third quarter of 2007.

Improved Net Seasonal Operating Loss and Cash Flow Provided by Operations — The net loss of
$12.9 million ($0.24 basic and diluted loss per share) for the six months ended April 30, 2007 improved
by $15.8 million over the $28.6 million loss ($0.64 basic and diluted loss per share) for the same period
last year, due largely to record levels of EBITDA, offset by takeover response costs and lower tax
recoveries. Similarly, cash flow provided by operations of $11.3 million ($0.20 cash flow provided by
operations per share) for the six months ended April 30, 2007 improved by $25.6 million over the cash
flow used in operations of $14.3 million ($0.33 cash flow used in operations per share) for the same
period in 2006.

Higher Grain Shipments & Margins - The Company’s grain shipments for the six months ended April
30, 2007 increased by 121,000 tonnes {or 2.2%) compared to the same period last year, despite
challenges experienced with frequent rail disruption in the most recent quarter. The Company’s average
grain margin per tonne increased to $24.55 for the most recent quarter compared to $22.79 in the
second quarter of last year, mainly the result of improved logistics and efficiencies captured with the
steady supply and movement of grain.

Strong Recovery of Crop Input Sales and Margins — Crop Production Services {(*CPS") sales for the
six months ended April 30, 2007 were $184.0 million compared to $142.8 million reported in the same
period of the prior year, with sales increases reported among all product groups. Aggregate margins for
CPS for the most recent quarter of 2007 also improved, increasing to 26.7% compared to 21.0% for the
same period last year, due mainly to the strong recovery of crop nutrition margins reported in the quarter.

Higher Feed Tonne Volumes and Gross Profit — Feed sales increased by 293,000 tonnes (or 56.3%)
for the six months ended April 30, 2007 due to the Company's acquisition of Hi-Pro Feeds (“Hi-Pro™).
Average feed margins of $44.14 per tonne for the six month period ended April 30, 2007 improved by
$0.53 per tonne and, combined with higher volumes, contributed to the $13.0 million improvement in
gross profit.

Takeover Costs — Takeover bid response costs of $5.4 million were recognized in the current quarter
and total costs for the six month period ended April 30, 2007 were $8.2 miilion. These costs represent
legal, financial and other advisory costs associated with the takeover bid by Saskatchewan Wheat Pool
Inc. (“SWP?”) and related negotiations with James Richardson International Limited {("JRI").

Trailing Twelve Month Cash Flow Exceeds Capital Spending, Investments and Principal and
Dividend Repayments — Cash flow provided by operations of $110.0 million for the twelve months
ended April 30, 2007 exceeded the $256.6 millicn invested in net capital expenditures, investments and
other assets (excluding acquisition expenditures of $53.0 million) by $83.4 million. Scheduled principal
repayments on long-term debt and sharehoider dividends totaled $39.2 million over the same trailing
twelve month period.

Acquisition by Saskatchewan Wheat Pool Inc. — On May 29, 2007, SWP announced that it had taken
up more than 75% of the issued and outstanding Limited Voting Common Shares of the Company. ltis
anticipated that the Company will be continued under the Canada Business Corporations Act on June
13, 2007 and that the remaining shares will be acquired pursuant to a Plan of Arrangement on or about
June 15, 2007. Following the completion of this transaction, Agricore United shares will be de-listed
from the Toronto Stock Exchange.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") as af June 7, 2007 is based on the accompanying
financial information that has been prepared using Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP7). All
amounts are reported in Canadian dollars unless specifically stated to the contrary. Unless otherwise indicalted, a
reference to a year relates to the Company's fiscal year ended Qclober 31.

The accompanying MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s MD&A included on pages 6 to 29 of its
2006 Annual Report. Additional information relating to the Company, including the Company’s 2006 Annual Information
Form (*AIF”), is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Forward-Looking Information

Certain stafements in this report may contain forward-locking information. Such statements include, but are not limited
to, statements that address the resulls, events or activities that the Company expecls or anticipates will or may occur in
the future, including statements in respect of the growth of the business and operations, competitive strengths, strategic
initiatives, planned capital expenditures, plans and references to future operations and results, critical accounting
estimates, and expectations regarding future capital resources and liquidity. Such statements relate to, among other
things, our objectives, goals, stralegies, intentions, plans, beliefs, expectations and estimates and can generally be
identified by the use of statements that include words such as “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “plan”, “likely”,
“will", “may”, “could”, “should”, “‘would”, “suspect”, “outlook”, “estimate”, “forecast’, “objective”, “continue” (or the negative
thereof) or simifar words or phrases.

All of the statements in the MD&A which contain forward-looking information are qualified by these cautionary statements
and the other cautionary staternents and factors contained herein. Although the Company believes that the expectations
reflected in such statements are reasonable, such statements involve risks and uncertainties, and undue reliance should
not be placed on such statements. Certain material factors or assumptions are applied in making such statements and
actual resulls, events or activities may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements. In addition to
other assumptions specifically identified, assumptions have been made that include, but are not limited to, the economic,
regufatory, political and competitive environment in Canada and abroad, weather conditions, the level and nature of
ongoing railway incentives and the capacity of the railways to provide for tirmely delivery to port, the continued support of
the Company's insurance providers, westem Canadian crop production and quality, agncultural commodity prices and
markets, natural gas prices, demand and pricing for Crop Production Services ("CPS") products, the availability of feed
ingredients for livestock and poultry producers, the cyclicality of hog prices and the general financial condition of the
Company’s producer and end-use customers. Additional assumptions applied in making these statements may also be
made in respect of the specific vanables associated with our Key Performance Drivers, as ouffined in our 2006 Annual
Report, in the section entitled “Business Segment Performance”.

Important factors that could cause actual results, events or activities to differ matenially from these expectations include,
among other things: the risks and uncertainties associated with weather conditions, agricuftural commodity prices,
financial leverage, additional funding requirements, intemational trade and political uncertainty, competition, domestic
regulation, environmental risks, food safely, diseases and other livestock industry risks, acceptance of genetically
modified products, labour disruptions, dependence on key personnel, lechnological advances, credit risk, foreign
exchange nsk, competition matters relaling to the merger of United Grain Growers Limited (*UGG") and Agricore
Cooperative Ltd. (*Agricore”), the provisions of the United Grain Growers Act and changes to the anticipated closing of
the acquisition transaction by SWP. Additional information about these factors and about material factors or assumptions
underlying such statements may be found in the body of this document as well as in the Company's 2006 AlF, the MD&A
included on pages 6 to 29 of its 2006 Annual Report and in the Directors’ Circular dated December 12, 2006, the Notice
of Change to Direcfors’ Circular dated February 8, 2007, the Notice of Change to Directors’ Circular dated May 2, 2007
and the Nofice of Change to Directors’ Circular dated May 16, 2007. These are not necessarily all of the important
factors that could cause actual resulls, events or activilies to differ matenally from those expressed in any of the
Company’s statements which contain forward-looking information. Other known and unpredictable factors could also
impact its results. Consequently, there can be no assurance that the actual results, events or activities anticipated by the
Company will be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will have the expected consequences to, or effects
on, the Company.

All statements made in this report which contain forward-looking information are made as of the date of this document.

Unless otherwise required by applicable securities laws, the Company disclaims any intention or obligation to publicly
update or revise such statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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1. Overview of the Company

Agricore United is one of Canada's leading agri-businesses with headquarters in Winnipeg, Manitoba and
extensive operations and distribution capabilities across western Canada, as well as operations in the United
States and Japan. Agricore United leverages its technology, facilities, services and logistics expertise to
connect agricultural customers to domestic and international end-use customers and suppliers.

Created on November 1, 2001 by the merger of Agricore Cooperative Ltd. and United Grain Growers
Limited, the Company's oldest predecessor company was ariginally incorporated on July 20, 1906. The
Company's operations are diversified into grain handling, sales of crop inputs and services, livestock
production services and financial markets. Additional information about the segments of the Company,
including information on Key Performance Drivers in each segment can be found in the Company's MD&A
on pages 6 to 29 of the 2006 Annual Report.

Agricore United's Limited Voting Common Shares are publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under
the symbol "AU". :

2, Business Segment Performance
2.1  Grain Handling

The Canadian Grain Commission (“CGC") reported industry shipments of the six major grains (wheat, barley,
oats, canola, flax and peas) for the six months ended April 30, 2007 of 15.9 million tonnes, a modest
decrease of 263,000 tonnes (cor 1.6 %) over the same period last year.

The Company's total grain shipments of 5.5 million tonnes for the first six months of 2007 were 121,000
tonnes (2.2%) higher than the same period of the prior year, due mainly to higher shipments in the first
quarter of the year. The ratio of the Company to industry grain shipments for the trailing twelve month period
ended April 30, 2007 increased to 34.6%, compared to the 33.6% market share reported for the fiscal year
ended October 31, 2006, primarily due to a more normail distribution of production among the three prairie
provinces in 2006. The Company's ratio of Canadian Wheat Board {"CWB") shipments to total shipments
declined to 49.8% in the first six months of 2007 compared to 50.3% for the same six months last year as the
Company increased its shipments of non-CWB grains.

Industry port terminal handling receipts declined by 1.2 million tonnes (13.8%) to 7.5 million tonnes for the six
maonths ended April 30, 2007. Lower industry shipments at the West Coast terminals represented about 1.0
million tonnes of this decrease, most of which was experienced in the second quarter as a result of the CN
Rail strike and other rail disruptions experienced by the industry during the period. However, the Company's
port terminal receipts as a proportion of industry port terminal receipts improved in the second quarter of
2007, from 36.5% in 2006 to 40.2% despite the conditions experienced in the industry. Overall, the
Company's port terminal receipts for the six months ended April 30, 2007 decreased by 584,000 tonnes,
largely the result of the Company’s reduced CWB grain handle, coupled with a decline in third-party CWB
grain handle. Consequently, the Company’s ratio of port terminal grain handle to shipments for the latest six
month period also decreased to 50.4% from 62.4% for the same period of 2006.

Commodity margins per tonne for the six months ended April 30, 2007 increased by $1.18 per tonne (or
5.5%), which includes $0.42 per tonne for accrued earnings attributable to higher earnings in Prince Rupert
Grain Terminal. The balance of the increase in margins was targely attributable to improved margins as a
result of improved logistics and positioning by merchants, steady demand and movement of crops and a
good quality crep in 2006.
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Grain Handling
For the periods ending April 30 Second Quaner Six Months
(in thousands - except percentages, marngins & tums) Better Better
(Unaudited) 2007 2006 {Worse) 2007 2008 (Worse)
Gross profit and net revenue from services $§ 65866 % 61,111 -l § 124602 %5 115493 7 9%
Operating, general and administrative expenses {33,110) (36,638) 96% (68,922) {75,651) 89%
EBITDA 32,756 24,473 33 8% 55,680 39,842 39 8%
Depreciation and amertization (6,793) (8,711) (12%) (13,599) (13,444) (1 2%)
EBIT $ 25963 § 17,762 46 2% $ 42081 S 26,398 56 4%
Operating Highlights
Industry shipments - six major grains (fonnes} 7,176 8,283 (13 5%) 15,902 16,165 (1 6%)
Grain shipments - country elevatoers (fonnes} 2,683 2,682 - % 5,506 5,385 2 2%
Industry terminal handle - six major grains {tonnes) 3,158 4,378 (27 9%) 7,488 8,683 {13 8%)
Terminal handle {fonnes) * 1,211 1,506 (20 4%) 2,775 3,359 (17 4%)
% Terminal handle 1o grain shipments 47.4% 58.5% (121 pt) 50.4% 62.4% (120 pt)
Market share (%) 37.4% 32.3% 51 pt 34.6% 33.3% 13pt
Margin (3 per grain tonne shipped) $ 2455 % 2279 7 7% ] 2263 § 21.45 55%
Licenced storage capacity (tannes) **
- Industry 5177 5,207 {C 6%) 8177 5,207 (0 6%)
- Company 1,258 1,264 (0 5%) 1,258 1,264 0 5%)
Inventory turns {shipments divided by capacity)
- Industry 5.54x 6.37 x {0 83 p) 6.14 x 6.21x (0 07 pt)
- Company 8.53x 8,49 x 004 pt 8.75x 8.52x Q23pt

* Company terminal handle (or receipts) excludes grain handied through the Prince Rupert Grain Terminal, in which it has an interest.
** Based on licenced storage reported at April 28, 2006 and March 30, 2007 by the Canadian Grain Cormmission.

The Company's inventory turn factor, a measure of efficient use of storage capacity, increased to 8.75 times
for the six months ended April 30, 2007, compared to 852 times for the same period last year and
represents a turn factor that is about 43% higher than the industry as a whole. Inventory turn factors of non-
CWB grains continue to exceed those of CWB grains.

Grain Handling OG&A expenses decreased $6.7 million or 8.9% for the latest six months compared to the
same period of the prior year, despite a 2.2% increase in grain shipments and a 7.9% increase in gross profit
this fiscal year to date. Current quarter reductions included $2.9 million in lower risk and insurance costs
(with a portion being allocated to the corporate segment in the current fisca! year), $2.3 million in lower
utilities expenses (primarily associated with lower natural gas costs and less grain drying activity), $1.4
million in lower selling expenses (now being allocated to gross margin), $767,000 in lower provincial capital
tax costs, $602,000 in lower employee benefit costs, $424,000 in lower vehicle expenses and $407,000 in
lower property taxes, offset by $780,000 in additional repair and maintenance costs, $768,000 in cancelled
contract costs, and $462,000 in additional bad debts and collection costs.

2.2 Crop Production Services

Due to the seasonal nature of the growing season in western Canada, crop input sales in the first six months
of the Company's fiscal year typically represent about 10% to 25% of the annual sales of crop inputs,
compared with an average of 70% to 75% of annual sales recorded in the Company's third quarter.
Nenetheless, sales for the first six months of 2007 improved by $41.3 million {(28.9 %) over the same period
of the prior year, with improved sales in all product lines augmented by a particularly strong recovery in crop
nutrition sales which improved by over 59% in the most recent quarter. The increase in crop nutrition sales
for fiscal 2007 follows a reduction in the application of fertilizer in the 2006 spring season and strong
production yields in 2006 which established a need to replenish soil nutrients, and reflects accelerated timing
of current period sales as producers sought to secure supplies in a tight market.
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Crop Production Services
For the periods ending Apnt 30 Second Quarter

i i i Six Months
i - Better Better
(Unsudited) 2007 2006 {Worse) 2007 2006 {Worse)

(in thousands - except percentages)

Gross profit and net revenue from services $ 35083 § 19,260 B2 2% 43978 $ 27,560
Operating, general and administrative expenses (24,897} {23,268) (7 0%) {47,413} {47,308)

EBITDA 10,186 (4,008) 354 3% 3,435) {19,746)
Depreciation and amortization (4,275) (4,788 104% {8,657} (9,574

EBIT $§ 5911 % (8.775) 167 4% {12,092) $ (29,320)

Operating Highlights

Seed, Crop Nutrition, Crop Protection, Other Sales $ 131,444 91,701 184,040 § 142,784
Seed s 37,017 % 20,651 37,297 % 30,351
Crop Nutrition $ 77,33 § 48,600 128,467 § 98243
Crop Protection $§ 16960 § 13,422 18,065 % 14,070

Margin {% of Sales) 26.7% 21.0% 23.9% 19.3%

The Company does not record sales until products are delivered or services are rendered to customers.
Accordingly, the Company's deferred sales revenue (prepaid sales not yet delivered) increased by almost
79% to $137.0 million at April 30, 2007, compared to $76.6 million at the same time last year. In accordance
with Canadian GAAP, the Company also defers the recognition of gross profit from inter-company sales until
product is sold to a third party. Deferred inter-company profits from Western Cooperative Fertilizers Ltd.
(“Westco") at April 30, 2007 were $13.3 million (2006 - $11.4 million). Deferred inter-company profit is
typically lower at the end of July as seasonal sales are largely complete by that date.

Increased sales activity along all product lines contributed to an increase in gross profit and revenue from
services of $15.8 million for the quarter and $16.4 million for the first six months of 2007. Other factors
contributing to the increase in gross profit for the first six months of 2007 included:

» A 34.3 million improvement in fertilizer margins attributable to the Company’s propertionate share in
Westco. EBITDA from the Company's investment in Westco for the first six months of 2007 was
$8.7 million (2006 - $3.9 millicn), which represents the Company's proportionate entitiement to about
60% of the total EBITDA of Westco for the fiscal period to date;

« A $7.7 million increase in gross profit due to higher fertilizer volumes and retail margins in the current
fiscal year to date. This increase reflects a significant recovery over the prior year results which
were affected by reduced demand (as a result of higher input costs in 2006) and the compressed
margins reported through the first and second quarter of 2006, a result of the inventory depreciation
that was experienced that period;

s« A $1.0 million improvement in gross profit attributed to higher seed sales (due to the accelerated
timing of the spring seeding season in the current fiscal period), offset in part by lower margins on
seed products due to competitive pressures on canocla pricing and a change in mix of seed products;

» A $1.8 million increase in gross profit attributable to higher third party commissions, lower provisions
for inventory writedowns and lower sales program costs, offset in part by hlgher credit card
commissions resulting from the increased sales activity; and

s Anincrease in seed processing revenue and co-promotional funding from suppliers in the first half of
2007.

Crop Production Services OG&A expenses increased by $107,000 for the six months ended April 30, 2007,
which includes $306,000 in higher seed treatment costs and $234,000 in additional seed development costs,
offset by $264,000 in lower advertising, marketing and promotlon costs and $158,000 in lower net payroll
costs attributable in part to fewer equivalent full time ("EFT™) staff' in the current period.

! Where applicable, "EFT™ staff will include staff related to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint venture in Cascadia

Terminal.
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2.3 Livestock Services

The profitability of feed manufacturing is more closely correlated to the volume of feed tonnes sold than to
gross sales revenue since feed prices tend to fluctuate in response to the cost of ingredients. Feed sales of
$209.6 million ($258 per tonne) for the six months ended April 30, 2007 increased by $96.2 million (84.8%)
from sales of $113.4 million ($218 per tonne) for the same period last year. The substantive increase in feed
volumes is due to an additional 320,000 tonnes of feed sales associated with the Company's acquisition of
Hi-Pro, which closed on August 14, 20086, offset in part by a decline in feed volumes attributed to the
divestiture of the Company's feed mill in Armstrong, B.C. in March 2006. Hi-Pro is expected to add
approximately 600,000 tonnes of processed feed and ingredient sales to the existing Livestock Services
segment on an annualized basis.

The profitability from hog sales and the Company’s equity investment in The Puratone Corporation follows
the underlying movement in hog prices which are trending lower compared to the prior year.

Livestock Services
For the periods ending Aprif 30 Sacond Guarter Six Months
{in thousands - except percentages and margins) Better Better
{Unaudited) 2007 {Worse) 2006 (Worse)
Gross profit and net revenue from services § 20,435 13,748 48 Eeo $ 41261 5 28,240 46 1%
Operating, general and administrative expenses (12,661) (8,683} {44 5% {25,865) (17.839) (45 0%)
EBITDA 7.884 5,065 557% 15,396 10,401 48 0%
Depreaciation and amortization {1,673} (968) (72 8%) (3,343) (1,856) (70 9%)
EBIT $ 6211 § 4,087 51 6% $ 120583 § 8,445 J2.7%
Operating Highlights
Feed sales (fonnes) 385 246 813 520 56 3%
Non-feed sales and revenue from services $ 18000 $ 18,033 $ 38491 $ 35179 g 1%
Feed margin (3 per feed tonne sold) $ 4546 % 42,85 $ 4414 § 43.81 12%
Non-feed gross profit & net revenue from services $§ 293 s 3,208 $ 5377 § 5,565 {3 4%)

Gross profit on feed for the six months ended April 30, 2007 increased by $13.2 million (58.2%) over the
same period of the prior year as a result of increased tonnes sold, together with a moderate improvement in
feed margins over the same period. Hi-Pro contributed $14.3 million to the gross profit of the livestock
segment, or $44.62 per tonne based on 320,000 incremental tonnes of feed sales. This was offset, in part,
by lower gross profit and margins in the Canadian markel, due to the divestiture of the miil in Armstrong, B.C.
in March 2006, and heightened pricing pressures in the B.C. market in the current fiscal period to date.

Non-feed gross profit for the six months ended April 30, 2007 declined by $188,000 compared to the prior
period last year. However, after excluding the one-time recovery of $364,000 related to the settlement of a
class action lawsuit reported in the second quarter of 2006, non-feed gross profit actually improved by
$776,000 in the current fiscal period. This improvement was the result of higher freight and other revenue
which more than offset lower hog margins in the six month period.

Livestock Services OG&A expenses increased by $8.0 million {or 45.0%) to $25.9 million for the six months

ended April 30, 2007, due mainly to additional payroll expenses of $4.4 million and other OG&A expenses of
$3.8 miillion attributable to the Hi-Pro acquisition.
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2.4  Financial Markets

Financial Markets

For the periods ending Aprit 30 Second Quanter Six Months

(in thousands - except percentages) Better Better
(Unaudited) 2007 2008 {Worse) 2007 2006 (Worse)
Gross profit and net revenue from services $§ 1305 3§ 1,562 {16 2%) ] 3809 § 3,988

Operating, general and administrative expenses {166) 137 (221 2%) {1,300} (1,388)

EBITDA 1,143 1,699 (32 7%) 2,509 2,600

Depreciation and arnordization {186) (74} (151 4%) (352) {156) (112 0%}
EBIT $ 957 $ 1,625 {71 1%) k1 2,157  §$ 2,434 (114%)

Financial Markets gross profit and net revenue decreased by $179,000 in the six months ended April 30,
2007 compared to the same period last year. The decline in gross profit is primarily due to lower revenue on
credit advanced through Agricore United Financial and Unifeed Financial as producers settled accounts
earlier than in the prior year. This was offset, in part, by a $219,000 improvement in gross profit for the six
month period associated with the Company's PRISM™ program introduced in the spring of 2006. The
PRISM™ program offers producers a bundled product offering, together with a risk management component
that mitigates the financial impact of the customer’s potential yield losses.

The decrease of $88,000 in OGS&A expenses for the six months ended April 30, 2007 is due mainly to lower
bad debt expenses, lower property rental costs and a recovery of provincial capital taxes in the current fiscal
period. In the most recent quarter, a $350,000 increase in consulting costs contributed to the higher OG&A
expenses.

2.5 Corporate Expenses

Corporate Expenses

For the periods ending Apnil 30 Sacond Quarter Six Months

(in thousands - excep! percentages} Better Better
(Unaudited) 2007 2008 (Worse) 2007 2006 {Worse)
Operating, genera! and administrative expenses $ (14,855) $ {8,704} [EEREIN % (24,687) % (18,438) (33.9%)
Depreciation and amortization (1,016) {1,394) 27 1% (2,009) {2.918) 312%
EBIT $ (15871) § {11,098) [EkaeA $ (26,696) $ (21,3586) (25.0%)

The $6.2 million increase in Corporate OG&A expenses for the first six months of 2007 includes $1.6 millicn
in additional risk and insurance costs (due to a change in costs allocated from the grain segment compared
to the prior year), $4.2 million in additional payroll and benefit costs, of which $2.6 million related to the
impact of the Company's improved stock price on its Restricted Stock Unit Plan and annual incentive
payment plans (described in the Company's 2005 Management Proxy Circular) and $326,000 in additional
directors’ fees and shareholder services.
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3. Consolidated Financial Results
Selected Consolidated Financial Informatlon
For the periods ending Aprif 30
fin thousands - except percentages,per share amounts Second Quarter Six Months
and EFT numbers} Better Better
{Unaudited) 2007 2006 {Worse} 2007 2008 (Worse)
Gross profit and net revenue from services $ 122693 § 85,681 P § 212650 § 175281 219%
Operating, general and administrative expenses (85,579) {78,154) {9 5%) {168,187) (160,622} {4 7%)
EBITDA 37,114 17,527 111 8% 45,463 14,659 210 1%
Depreciation and amertization {13,943) {13,916) 0 2%) (27,960) {28,058) 0 3%
EBIT 23,171 3,611 541 7% 17,503 {13,399) 230 6%
Takeover bid response costs (Note 12) (5,399) - - % {8,224) - - %
Gain {loss) on disposal of assats (1,932) 460 (520 0%) {1,428) 18 {8033 3%)
Interest and securitization expenses {11,752) {14,528) 19 1% (26,315) {27 815} 5.4%
4,088 {10,457) 139 1% (18,464) {41,1986) 55 2%
Recovery of (provision for) income taxes
Current portion (4%0) {782) 37 3% {1,654) {1,257) (31 6%}
Future portion {1,538) 3,222 (147 7%} 7,262 13,838 {47 5%}
Net eamings {loss) for the period $ 2060 § {8.017) LR $  (12,856) §  (28.615) 55 1%
Eamings per share
- basic H 0.03 § {0.18) $ (0.29) $ {0.64)
- diluted H 0.03 § (0.18) $ (0.24) $ {0.54)
Equivalent Full Time Staff ('EFT"}
- for the trailing twelve month period ended April 30 2,749 2,719 {1 1%) 2,749 2,719 (7 1%}

3.1 Gross Profit and Net Revenue from Services, EBITDA and EBIT

The Company's gross profit and net revenue from services for the six months ended April 30, 2007
increased by $38.4 million over the same period last year, with 2 $9.1 million increase in grain handling gross
profit from higher grain shipments and margins, complemented by gross profit improvements in crop
production services and livestock services of $16.4 million and $13.0 million respectively. These factors are
discussed in greater detail under “2. Business Segment Performance” above.

OG&A expenses for the six months ended April 30, 2007 increased by $7.6 million {or 4.7%) compared to
the same period last year. Total payroll expenses increased by $7.5 million for the six month period in 2007,
due to increases in the weighted average EFT staff and payroll attributable to the additional Hi-Pro
employees during the period and the additional accruals related to the Company's Restricted Stock Unit and
annual incentive payment plans. Other OG&A costs increased by only $72,000 for the six months ended
April 30, 2007, with lower risk and insurance, provincial capital taxes, vehicle and utilities costs (associated
with lower natural gas costs and reduced grain drying activity} offsetting other additional OG&A costs
attributable to Hi-Pro.

Takeover bid response costs of $8.2 million in the current fiscal year relate to financial, legal and shareholder
communication costs associated with the Company’s response to the takeover proposal initiated by SWP on
November 7, 2006 and related negotiations with JRI. These costs have been excluded from EBITDA as they
represent costs which are not considered to be in the ordinary course of business. (See “Use of Non-GAAP
Terms”, below).

Depreciation and amonrtization expenses decreased $98,000 for the six months ended April 30, 2007
compared to the same six months last year, despite additional depreciation and amortization attributable to
Hi-Pro of $1.5 million for the period. Additionally, in the first six months of the prior year, the Company
recorded $1.5 million for the amortization of deferred financing costs. However, with the implementation of
the new accounting policy in respect of financial instruments (see 4.2.1. “Financial Instruments” below),
transaction costs associated with the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability are
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reported as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the underlying instrument. As such, these costs are
now amortized over the instrument's remaining expected useful life using the effective interest rate method
and are included as interest and securitization expenses on the income statement (see 3.3 “Interest and
Securitization Expenses”’, below).

The amortization and depreciation of assets continues to exceed the level of sustaining capital expenditures
{estimated at $35 million to $40 million annually).

3.2 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets

The loss of $1.4 million on the disposal of assets for the six months ended April 30, 2007 includes an accrual
in the second quarter of 2007 of $1.6 million, representing the estimated impairment loss on the Company's
pending disposition of its Vancouver pert terminal which is expected to close on or about June 30, 2007.
The remaining gain on disposal of assets is comprised of gains on assets in the normal course of business.
Proceeds from the disposition of such capital assets were $1.5 million (2006 - $2.7 million).

3.3 Interest and Securitization Expenses

Interest and Securitization Expenses
For the periods ending April 30
{in thousands - excep!t percentages) Sacond Quarter Better Six Months Betler
(Unaudited) 2007 2008 {Worse} 2007 2008 {Worse)
Interest on;
Convertible debentures $ - $ (2,362) 100 0% ] (1,588) $ (4,725) 66 1%
Long-term debt (6,827) (6,834) 01% {14,038) (14,162) 0.9%
Short-term debt {4,769) {5,404) 11 8% (9,600) (9,333) (2 9%)
Securitization expenses {859) {567) {51 5%) (1.540) (1,014) {51 9%)
CWB carrying charge recovery 866 639 35 5% 1,468 1,419 3 5%
MNor-cash interest expense (Note 10) {163) - {1,017} -
$ (11,762) $  (14,528) [ERb N $ (26,315) $ (27,815) 54%

Long-term interest costs decreased modestly during the six months ended April 30, 2007 compared to the
same period the prior year as a result of net scheduled long-term debt repayments of $32.0 million over the
past twelve months and lower interest costs associated with the Company’s long-term debt refinancing in
September 2006.

Short-term interest costs increased $267,000 for the six months ended April 30, 2007. An 84 basis point (or
0.84%) increase in the average underlying prime rate during the six month period compared to the same
period last year, offset by a $39.2 million reducticn in average short-ferm bank debt, accounted for the
increase in short-term interest costs. The decrease in average short-term debt is primarily attributable to
higher operating cash flow, lower principal repayments serviced from short-term debt and an increase in the
proportion of long-term debt, offset by an increase in average non-cash working capital (See "5.1.2 Non-cash
Working Capital’, page 14). In the most recent quarter, the $635,000 reduction in short term interest
expense also reflects reduced borrowing rates which took effect during the quarter. Capitalized interest
related to capital expenditures decreased by $135,000 to $76,000 for the six month pertod, which reflects the
reduction in the number of large capital projects undertaken this quarter.

Securitization costs relate to the Company’s agreement with an independent trust whereby the Company can
sell an undivided co-ownership interest in its rights to producer advances made on behalf of the CWB.
Higher commodity values and the increase in the average underlying prime rate, offset in part by lower
securitization activity associated with reduced CWB receipts in the current quarter, accounted for the
increase in securitization expenses for the six months ended April 30, 2007. Year-to-date recoveries of CWB
carrying charges in the first six months of fiscal 2007 were comparable to the prior year.
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Included in interest costs for the six months ended April 30, 2007 is $1.0 million of non-cash interest expense
associated with the implementation of the new accounting policy adopted in the first quarter with respect to
Financial Instruments (see 4.2.1 “Financial Instruments”, page 12). These costs represent the effect of
adopting the effective interest method for financial instruments as described in note 10 of the interim financial
statements for the period ending April 30, 2007 and include the amortization of transaction costs which had
previously been deferred and amortized as part of depreciation and amortization expenses (see 3.1 “Gross
Profit and Net Revenue from Services, EBITDA and EBIT", page 9).

3.4 Income Taxes

The Company's effective tax rate for the six months ended April 30, 2007 was 30.4% (2006 — 30.5%).
Current income tax expense of $1.7 million increased by $397,000 for the six month period mainly due to
higher taxes in subsidiary operations and was offset in part by the elimination of the Large Corporation
Capital Tax (“LCCT") which had been previously been accrued in the first quarter of 2006.

As at April 30, 2007, the Company had loss carry-forwards of $339 million (2006 - $371 million) available to
reduce income taxes otherwise payable in future years, with $41 million (2006 - $127 million) expiring
between October 2008 and 2027. Losses subject to expiry represent the net losses of the Company,
excluding discretionary deductions such as capital cost allowance. The reduction of $86 million from the
same quarter in 2006 reflects the estimated taxable income (exclusive of discretionary deductions) for the
trailing twelve month period that will be applied to reduce these losses.

A future tax asset of $110.3 million has been recorded in respect of the Company's unutilized losses, which
includes $20.3 million classified as a short-term future tax asset. Management regularly assesses the
Company’s ability to realize net future income tax assets based on all relevant information available and has
concluded that it is more likely than not that these loss carry-forwards can be fully utilized prior to expiry. In
making its assessment, management of the Company considered, among other things, historical and
projected future earnings (see “Forward-Looking Information” above). Accordingly, the Company has not
recorded a valuation allowance related to these assets. |If the Company's projected future earnings do not
materialize to the extent required to permit the full realization of these loss carry-forwards, the Company
would record an appropriate valuation allowance in the pericd when such a determination is made. This
would result in a decrease to reported earnings and an increase to the Company's effective tax rate in that
period.

3.5 Loss for the Period
The loss of $12.9 million {$0.24 basic and diluted loss per share) for the six month period ended April 30,
2007 was $15.8 million better than the loss of $28.6 million ($0.64 basic and diluted loss per share) for the

same period in 2006. Per share calculations for the respective periods reduced income by the pro rata cost
of the $1.1 million annual preferred share dividend.
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3.6 Selected Quarterly Financial Information
Selected Quarterly Financlal Information
For the quarters ended
($mitiions - except per share amoun!s)
(Unauditad) 2007 Q2 2007 Q1 2006 04 2006 Q3 2008 Q2 2006 Q1 2005 Q4 2005 03
Sales and revenue from services $ 8146 $ 7097 $ 7068 $11775 $ 5698 $ 5444 3 5659 $ 10213
Net income {loss) from continuing operations ’ $ 21 § (1499 § (68 § 560 $ (80 § (206 § (1300 § 48,3
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations per share '
- basic $ 003 $ (@30) $ (0160 % 123 $ (018 $ 048 S {029y S 1.06
- diluted $ 0.03 $ (030 % (016} % 085 § (013 § (048) S (029 S 0.82
Net income {loss) $ 21 $ (149) § 68 § 560 $ (8.0 $ (206) % (13.0) $ 48.3
Eamings (less) per share
- basic $ 003 $ (©30) S (016 % 123 $ (0.18) $ 0480 $ (029 S 1.06
- dituted $ 003 $ (030) S (0160 $ 095 $ (018 $ (0.48) $ (029 H 0.82

! Before ciscontinued operations and axtraordinary itams

4, Other Matters
4.1 Related Party Transactions

The Company transacts with related parties in the normal course of business at commercial rates and terms.
The Company receives a shipper's return for grain movement through its investment in the port terminal at
Prince Rupert. The Company purchases crop protection products through a member-owned purchasing
cocperative, Inter-provincial Cooperative Limited, which entitles the Company to receive patronage earnings.
The Company also sells commodities to Archer Daniels Midland Company, a principal shareholder during
the period, and its subsidiaries and associated companies.

Total sales to non-consolidated related parties were $68.5 million for the six months ended April 30, 2007
(2006 - $57.7 million) and total purchases from related parties over the same period were $28.2 million (2006
- $24.8 million). At April 30, 2007, accounts receivable from and accounts payable to related parties totaled
$4.3 million (2006 - $2.0 million) and $1.2 million (2006 — $1.0 million), respectively.

4.2  Accounting Policy Changes
4.2.1  Financial Instruments

As described in Note 10 of the interim financial statements for the period ending April 30, 2007, effective
November 1, 2006, the Company adopted new Handbook Sections: Section 3855, “Financial Instruments ~
Recognition and Measurement”, Section 3861, "Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation”,
Section 3865, “Hedges” and Section 1530, “Comprehensive Income”.

These accounting standards are to be applied to interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal
years beginning on or after October 1, 2006. The new standards provide guidance on the recognition,
measurement and classification of financial assets and financial liabilities. All financial instruments, including
derivatives, are included on a company’'s balance sheet and measured either at their fair values or, in
circumstances when fair value may not be considered most relevant, at amortized cost or cost. The
standards established a new measure of income called comprehensive income. Comprehensive income
represents the entire change in the net assets of an entity for a period and has two components — net income
and other comprehensive income., The new section provides guidance for reporting items in other
comprehensive income which will be included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as a separate component
of shareholders’ equity.

The new standards also establish the accounting requirements for hedges. The accounting for a specific
hedging relationship depends on its nature. Fair value hedging applies when the change in the fair value of
an existing asset or liabitity attributable to a particutar risk is being hedged. The change in the fair value of
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both the hedging item and hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognized in net income and
adjusts the carrying amount of the instruments, Cash flow hedging applies when the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk is hedged. The effective portion of the changes in fair value of the derivative is
recorded in other comprehensive income until the hedged item affects net income. Any ineffectiveness of
designated hedges is recognized immediately in income.

The Company has adopted the new standards on November 1, 2006, with the changes applied retroactively
without restatement of comparative financial statements, with the exception of the reclassification of the
currency translation account of $421,000 to accumulated other comprehensive income. As at November 1,
20086, the Company has recorded adjustments, net of tax, to retained earnings and accumulated other
comprehensive income of $812,000 and $1.1 million respectively.

5. Liquidity and Capital Resources
5.1 Sources and Uses
5.1.1  Cash Flow Provided By (Used in) Operations

Cash flow provided by operations improved by $25.6 million for the six months ending April 30, 2007
compared to the same period in 2006, due mainly to improvements in EBITDA, offset in part by the takeover
bid response costs. Current income taxes are significantly less than the prevailing tax rate on pre-tax cash
flows due to the tax shield provided by capital cost allowance and the Company's loss carry-forwards.
Accordingly, current income taxes mainly reflect the taxable position of certain subsidiaries. As noted above
in 3.4 “Income Taxes", higher taxes in subsidiaries, offset by the absence of Large Corporation Capital Tax
that was accrued in 2006, resulted in a $397,000 increase in current income tax expense to April 30, 2007.
Per share calculations for the respective periods as shown below decreased cash flow provided by
(increased cash flow used in) operations by the pro rafa cost of the $1.1 million annual preferred share
dividend.

Cash Flow Provided By (Used in) Operations
For the pericds ending Apni 30 Second Quarnar Six Months
(in thousands - except percentages & per share amounts) Better
{Linaudited) 2007 2008 {Worse) 2007 2006
EBITDA $ 37114 S 17,527 $ 45483 3 148659
Add (Deduct);
Non-cash compensation recovery 483 595 270 368
Other non-cash expenses 123 164 247 328
Investment tax credits - {2,075) - (2,075)
Distributions from equity investments, net 426 128 521 1,505
Adjusted EBITDA 38,145 16,339 21.807 46,501 14,783
Takeover bid response costs (Note 12} (5,399) - 5.399) (8,224) -
Cash Interest Expense (11,589) (14,528} 2.939 {25,298) (27.815)
Pre-tax cash flow provided by (used in) operations 21,158 1,811 19.347 12,979 {13,032)
Current income taxes (490) (782) 232 {1,654) (1,257
Currency Translation Account 21 - 21 13 - 13
Cash Flow Provided By (Used in) Operations § 20689 § 1,029 $ 11,338 §  (14,289) B 25,627
Cash Flow Provided by (Used in) Operations per share  § 034 S 0.02 5 0.20 § (0.33)
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5.1.2 Non-cash Working Capital

Non-Cash Working Capital
As at April 30 (in thousands} Sources
(Unaudited} 2007 2008 (Uses)

Non-Cash working capital

Inventory
Non-CWB grain inventory $§ 234870 5 167,189
Seed inputs held for resale 73,365 58,539
Crop nutrition products 195,179 162,789
Crop protection products 234,642 224 654
Other merchandise held for resale 23,827 14,825
761,783 657,008 (103.787)
Accounts receivable 254,015 200,393 (53.622)
Prepaid expenses 16,292 18,838 2 3449
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (617,231) {473,177) 144,054

$ 414859 § 403,848

Overall inventory levels at April 30, 2007 were $103.8 million higher than the same time last year. The
increase in non-CWB grain inventory was due to both higher physical stocks and higher average commodity
values associated with increased non-CWB grain handling activity. The $27.1 million increase in crop inputs
inventory is mainly due to higher canola seed inventories to meet pending sales commitments and the timing
of purchases and the level of supplier rebates in respect of crop protection inventory. The $9.0 million
increase in other inventory represents livestock inventory, of which most is attributable to Hi-Pro.

Accounts receivable at April 30, 2007 increased $53.6 million which reflects increased receivables in the
grain segment associated with the higher grain sales activity and the timing of the vessel shipments in the
current quarter, higher crop input receivables which mostly reflect the earlier timing of spring sales in the
current year and an increase in receivables in the livestock segment (attributable to Hi-Pro). Deposits from
customers for spring sales were $137.0 miflion at April 30, 2007, an increase of $60.4 million compared to
the same time last year, which together with higher trade payables in CPS, represent the main reason for the
increased accounts payable in the current period.

5.1.3 Capital Expenditures, Acquisitions and Divestitures

Capital expenditures of $7.7 million for the six months ended April 30, 2007 decreased by $3.9 million from
the same period last year. Individually large capital expenditures include $679,000 for upgrades to the
Cascadia terminal, $2.6 million for grain and fertilizer facility and equipment upgrades and $202,000 for feed
mill equipment. The Company expects to use cash flow provided by operations to fund between $15 million
and $20 million in sustaining capital expenditures {exclusive of acquisitions) in fiscal 2007.

As reported in Note 9 of the interim financial statements for the period ending April 30, 2007, the Company
acquired the operating assets of Green Acres Fertilizer Service (Major) Inc., Green Acres Chemical Ltd.
(collectively Green Acres) and Kerrobert Agro Services Ltd. effective December 18, 2006. The net
consideration for these acquisitions was $4.9 million and the purchase was accounted for using the purchase
method, with the results of the operation of these businesses included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition.

Divestitures for the current quarter and year to date reflect assets sold in the ordinary course of business and
are not expected to have a material impact on future operating results.
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5.1.4 Contractual Obligations
The Company’'s contractual obligations due for each of the next five years and thereafter are summarized
below:
Contractual Obtigations (in thousands)
(Unaudited) Principal Payments Due by Period
Less than After
Total 1 Year 1to ] Years 4tob Years 5 Years
Balance Sheet Obligations
Long-term debt $ 344194 S 19642 $ 44407 § 43230 % 236,915
Reclamation provision 14,664 7.3 4,702 1,499 1132
Dther long-term cobligations 5,280 230 - - 5,000
364,138 27,253 48,109 44,729 243,047
Cther Contractual Obllgations
Operating leases 67,545 12,561 18,087 10,849 25,148
Purchase obligations ' 839,507 736,646 102,274 287 -
907,052 749,507 121,281 11,136 25,148
Total Contractual Obligations $ 1,271,190 $ 776760 § 170370 $ 558685 § 268,185

! Substantiaily all of the purchase obligations reprasent contractual commitments to purchase commodities and products for resale.

5.2 Debt

521 Debt Ratings

The Company's debt ratings issued by Standard & Poor's, Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited and

Moody's Investors Service are detailed below:

Senior Series "A'
Secured Convertible
Revolving  |Facility (Term | Senior Notes | Praferred Corporate
Facility B Loans) 4 Shares Ratings
Standard & Poor's ' BB+ BB BB na BB
Dominion Bong Rating Service Limited ? BB BB (low) BB (low} Pfd-4 na
Moody's Investors Service * Ba3 Ba3 na na Ba3

! As at May 25, 2007
? Ag at February 21, 2007
As at May 17, 2007

Senior Notes include the A and B notes, the Termn Notes held with a U.S. life insurer and ihe Cascadia Notes. DBRS' raiing of ihe Senior Nolss excludes tha Cascadia Noles,

As of May 17, 2007, Moody's Investors Services indicated that the Company’s ratings remained on review
for possible downgrade subject to further review of its combination with SWP and the combined company’s
post transaction capital structure, timing of the realization of synergies, growth prospects and operating
ptans. Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited has not changed its “developing” outlook since February 21,

2007.
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5.22 Short-term Debt

Short-term Debt Trailing Tweive
For the periods ending Aprit 30 (in thousands) Six Monihs Better Months ended
{Unaudited) 2007 2008 {Warse) 2007
Cash flow provided by (used in) operations $ 11,338 $ (14,289) $ 109,974
Increase in non-cash working capital {128,447) (85,838) {11,010}
Working capital acquired 2,410 - 10,858
Other non-cash increases in working capital (757) (458) 20,440
{115,756) {100,588) 130,262

Net capital expenditures and investments {18,231) (24,538) [79,573)
Financing activities

Scheduled debt repayments, net of advances {11,354} (21,900) 43,288

Dividends paid {4,511) (3,825) (7,235}

Deferred financing and other costs {1,629) (737) (9,986)

Member and staff loan repayments, net {1,050) (1.1 {927}

Share capital issued, net of issue costs 1,012 244 1,252

Decrease (increase) in cash on deposit {13,997) 16,057 {39,968)
Currency translation adjustment 40 - 27
Sources (uses) of cash {165,476) {136,394) (29 082} 37,140
Bank loans, beginning of the period {111,963) {178,185) 656,222 {314,579)
Bank loans, end of the period (277.439) (314,579) 37 140 (277,439)
Member and employee lcans {20,692) (21,518) 226 {20,592)
Bank and other loans $ (208,031) § (336.097) IEEEEREXWIE $  (298,031)
Revolving Credit Facility:

Qutstanding letters of credit $ 56292 § 67999

Available uncommitted short-term revolving facility $ 211,468 $ 113,854

Revolving facility $ 525000 § 475000

Bank loans of $277.4 million at April 30, 2007, which includes $29.4 million (2006 — $23.5 million) in
borrowings of subsidiaries and joint ventures, were $37.1 million higher than a year earlier, as net uses of
cash exceeded sources by $29.1 million.

Non-cash working capital increased $128.4 million over the six months to April 30, 2007 due to seasonal
changes in working capital requirements compared to the prior year-end, offset by a $25.6 million
improvement in cash flow provided by operations (see 5.1.1 "Cash Flow Provided by (Used in) Operations™
on page 13). Net capital expenditures and investments decreased by $6.3 million, with the reduction in
sustaining capital expenditures (net of proceeds) of $2.6 million and the $4.6 million decrease in other
assets, offset by a $860,000 increase in expenditures for new business acquisitions.

Under the terms of the Company's loan agreements, scheduled long-term debt repayments decreased by
$10.5 million during the quarter. A $14.0 million increase in cash and cash equivalents is due mainly to the
Company's $20 million deposit in respect of the finite layer of its integrated insurance program and an
increase in cash held by its subsidiaries and joint ventures pending the settlement of trade credit obligations
or the distribution of cash to the subsidiaries’ shareholders and joint venture parties, offset by a reduction in
cash held by the Company. Cash distributions from the Company's principal subsidiaries (those in which the
Company has at least a 50% interest) occur at regular intervals and the Company maintains an active role in
all decisions affecting cash distributions from these subsidiaries.

The Company's outstanding letters of credit at April 30, 2007 decreased by $11.7 million compared to April
30, 2008, due mainly to the reduction of credit security provided in support of the Company’s grain volume
insurance program and the release of credit security for electronic data interchange and other wire
payments. The remaining outstanding letters of credit are issued in the normal course of business in support
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of debt related to the Company's interest in the Cascadia Terminal and trading activities on the Winnipeg
Commodity Exchange.

The Company's available uncommitted short-term revolving facility (excluding debt of subsidiaries and joint
ventures) at April 30, 2007 increased by $97.6 million to $211.5 million as a result of an increase in the
Company's revolving credit facility by $50.0 million, a reduction of $11.7 million in outstanding letters of credit
and a reduction in bank loans of $35.8 million. Based on the underlying borrowing base, $525 million was
available on the short-term facility at April 30, 2007, compared to $475 million at the same time last year.

Cash flow provided by operations of $110.0 million for the twelve months ended April 30, 2007 exceeded the
$26.6 million invested in net capital expenditures, investments and other assets (excluding capital
expenditures for acquisitions of $53.0 million which were financed primarily with long-term debt) by $83.4
million. Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt and shareholder dividends totaled $39.2 million
over the same period.

Management believes that cash flow from operations and the existing credit facilities will continue to provide
the Company with sufficient financial resources to fund its expected working capital requirements, planned
capital expenditure program and financing and debt servicing requirements for the foreseeable future. This
expectation is predicated on the Company’s expectation of future commodity and crop input prices, the
expected turnover of inventory and accounts receivable components of working capital and the continued
support of the Company’s lending group (see "Forward-Looking Information”, above). However, as a result
of the reptacement of its annual short-term facility with a three year committed facility in September, 2006,
refinancing risk has been substantially addressed. In addition, following the change of control, the Company
issued notices of redemption on May 30, 2007 in respect of its outstanding Term Notes, Series A Notes,
Series B Notes and Cascadia Series B Notes. The total redemption price for these notes, including
prepayment penalties, is about $218 million and will be funded by SWP.

5.3 Off-Balance Sheet Obligations and Arrangements
5.3.1 Pension Plan

At April 30, 2007, the market value of aggregate plan assets of the Company's various defined benefit plans
exceeded the aggregate accrued benefit obligations. In 2006, the Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions (“OSFI") approved the Company's amalgamation application to combine two of the defined
benefit plans, such that the new combined pian will be in a net surplus position. The Company has also
applied to OSF! to amalgamate another defined henefit plan with a surplus of $10.3 million with a defined
benefit plan with a deficit of $4.1 million, which would result in the Company having a second amaigamated
defined benefit plan with an aggregate surplus. However, if OSF! were to decline the second amalgamation
appiication, the Company may be required to fund a defined benefit plan deficit over a period of five to 15
years. The Company reported a deferred pension asset of $15.3 million in Other Assets at April 30, 2007.
The Company made $387,000 in cash contributions to its defined benefit plans and $3.1 million in cash
contributions to the defined contribution and multi-employer plans for the quarter ended April 30, 2007
(compared to the pension expense of $2.3 million recorded in the financial statements).

5.3.2 Agricore United Financial and Unifeed Financial

AU Financial provides working capital financing, through a Canadian Schedule | chartered bank, for
producers to purchase the Company’s crop nutrition products, crop protection products and seed.
Outstanding credit of $131.5 million at Aprit 30, 2007 advanced through AU Financial increased from
outstanding credit of $82.4 million at the same date last year, largely due to the earlier spring sales season.
About 83% of outstanding credit is related to AU Financial's highest credit rating categories, a modest
increase compared to about 82% at the same date last year. The Company indemnifies the bank for 50% of
future losses under AU Financial to a maximum limit of 5% of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance. The
Company's aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the size of the underlying portfolio.
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Unifeed Financial provides additional working capital financing through a Canadian Schedule | chartered
bank for livestock producers to purchase feeder cattle, feeder hogs and related feed inputs under terms that
do not require payment until the livestock is sold. The customer base for Unifeed Financial tends to be
smaller with individually larger average credit balances than AU Financial. Unifeed Financial approved $88.1
million {2006 - $59.6 million) in credit applications of which customers had drawn $50.7 million (2006 - $43.9
million) at April 30, 2007. The increase in credit compared to the prior year reflects the transition of
customers from other credit programs previously provided by the Company as well as growth in the portfolio.
The Company has indemnified the bank for aggregate credit losses of up to $10.9 million based on the first
20% to 33% of new credit issued on an individual account as well as for credit losses, shared on an equal
basis, of up to 5% of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance. The Company's aggregate indemnity will vary
at any given time with the credit rating of underlying accounts and the aggregate credit outstanding.

5.3.3 Securitization Arrangement

The Company has a securitization agreement with an independent trust which permits the Company to sell,
on an unlimited basis, an undivided co-ownership interest in its right to receive reimbursements of amounts
advanced to producers arising from the delivery of grains that are held in accordance with an agency
contract between the Company and the CWB. Either party may cancel the securitization agreement on 60
days natice. In the event of canceliation, the Company would either seek to establish a new securitization or
similar program or finance the amounts due from the CWB through the Company's revolving line of credit.

As at April 30, 2007, the Company had securitized $68.6 million of amounts it is entitled to receive in respect
of CWB grain compared with $55.2 million at April 30, 2006. About $10.8 million of receivables remained
unsecuritized at April 30, 2007 compared with $3.7 million at April 30, 2006. The increase in securitized
amounts at April 30, 2007 compared to the prior year reflects higher commodity prices and a change in the
timing and level of CWB activity in the current quarter.
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5.4  Market Capitalization

The market capitalization of the Company’s 60,189,850 issued and outstanding Limited Voting Common
Shares at June 4 2007 was $1.2 billion or $20.49 per share compared with the Company's book value of
$9.86 per share’ ($9 84 per share fully diluted) at April 30, 2007. The issued and outstanding Limited Voting
Common Shares at June 4, 2007, together with securities convertible into Limited Voting Common Shares,
are summarized in the foliowing table:

As af June 4, 2007
(Unaudited)
Issued and outstanding Limited Vioting Common Shares

60,189,850

Securities convertible into Limited Voting Common Shares:

Series "A" convertible preferred shares, non-voting,
$1 dividend per share, cumulative, convertible {1:1
basis), callable at $24

1,104,369

Stock Options .

£61,294,219

5.5 Financial Ratios

The Company’s total funded debt (excluding the Debentures in the prior comparative period}, net of cash, of
$575.6 million at April 30, 2007 decreased by $40.7 million compared to the same date last year as
scheduled repayments of long-term debt as noted above under “3.3 Interest and Securitization Expenses”
and cash flow provided by operations exceeded dividends, financing expenses, sustaining investment in
property, plant, equipment and other assets and increased investment in non-cash working capital. The
Company’s average funded debt, net of cash, was $494.4 million for the twelve months ended April 30, 2007
{2006 - $485.9 million) compared to $498.0 million for the twelve months ended October 31, 2006.

Financlal Ratios Trailing Twelve Monihs

Better
20086 {Worse)

{in thousands - except percentages and ratios) As at April 30 Better endad April 30
(Unaudited) 2007 2008 {Worse) 2007
Funded debt (excluding the Debentures), net of cash 3 576568 $§ 616277 B Rlegrdicll % 494407 $ 485954
EBITDA $ 1M1,440 $ 121768
Ratios

Current Ratio 118 x 1.07 x

Net Funded Debt to Capitalization 49.2% 52.2% 45.1% 45 3%
Eamings based Ratios

EBITDA to Fixed Charges 1.64 x 1.02x

Average Nat Dabt to TTM EBITDA 283 x 3.99x

The Company's leverage ratio (net funded debt to capitalization) fluctuates materially from month-to-month
due to underlying seasonal variations in short-term debt used to finance working capital requirements,
reflecting increased purchases of grain beginning in the fall and crop inputs inventery through the winter and
early spring, as well as price volatility in the commodities handled, all of which cannot be financed entirely
with trade credit. The Company’s leverage ratio typically declines to its lowest quarterly level at July 31,
representing the Company’s core non-seasona! level of working capital. Measured on an average trailing

2 Book value per share is derived by dividing the shareholders’ equity at the end of the period by the total number of Limited Voting Common Shares
outstanding at the end of the perfod as if the Series A Preferred shares had been converfed on a 1:1 basis. The fully diluted book value per share is
derivad by dividing the shareholders’ equity (including the value of executive stock options} at the end of the period by the total number of Limited Voting
Common Shares outstanding at the end of the period as if the Series A Preferred shares and executive stock options had been fully converted.
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twelve-month basis, the Company's leverage ratio declined to 45.1% for the period ended April 30, 2007
from 45.3% for the twelve months ended April 30, 2006. The Company’s leverage ratio of 45.1% at April 30,
2007 is also lower than the 45.8% reported for the twelve months ended October 31, 2006. Additionally, the
Company's EBITDA to Fixed Charge ratio has improved significantly, increasing to 1.64 for the twelve
months ended April 30, 2007, compared to 1.02 and 1.17 for the twelve months ended April 30, 2006 and
October 31, 2008, respectively.

Net Funded Debt to Capltalization Nat Funded Debt to Capitalization
Tralling Twelve Month {"TTM"} Average 55.0%
59.0% 1
50.0%
0,
53.0% 45.0% 1
47.0% 40.0%
41.0% 35.0%
35.0% g e e ——————————— 30.0%
T~ o o 0 > 4] c o = =
5398833388885 §53238:8588¢%§3
9 & B &8 B &4 % &8 & & B o
O « 0O € 0 €« 0 < 0 < 0 < = Average =) gverage (Net Debt/Capitalization)
6. Outlook

In addition to other sections of the Company’s report, this section contains forward-looking information and
actual outcomes may differ materially from those expressed or implied therein. For more information, see
“Forward-Locking Information” on page 3 of this report.

Statistics Canada survey of seeding intentions released on April 24, 2007 forecast that the total area to be
seeded to grains and oilseeds in 2007 is estimated to increase from the prior year, with summerfallow
estimated to fall to a modern day record low. In western Canada, areas seeded to canola, barley, oats, peas
and durum wheat are expected to increase by about 13% over the prior year, while areas seeded to spring
wheat, and flaxseed are projected to decline by about 17% compared to 2006. Projected acres dedicated to
canola are estimated to rise almost 12%, which should have a complementary positive impact on the volume
of the Company's cancla seed sales. The Company is Canada’s iargest exporter of canola and a significant
retailer of canola seed products in western Canada.

On May 29, 2007, Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada (“AAFC") released its outlook for Canadian grains and
oilseeds and is forecasting production for western Canada to increase only slightly in 2007, to 49.2 million
tonnes, near the long term average, while total carry-out stocks are forecast to fall by about 9%.

During the quarter, the Government of Canada held a plebiscite on the future of marketing for malting barfey
and export feed barley. A majority of farmers, 62.2 percent, voted in favour of increased marketing choice in
barley. The Government of Canada has published for comment draft regulations that would give farmers the
choice of marketing malting barley and export barley either through the Canadian Wheat Board or through
other marketing channels. The comment period on the draft regulatory changes ended on May 21, 2007.
The implementation date for the change, included in the draft regulations, is August 1, 2007. If changes to
the regulations are made, the Company is well positioned with end-use markets and has strong connections
for feed barley in Japan.

Total retail sales in CPS were about $512 million for the fiscal period to May 29, 2007 compared to $454
million for the same period of the prior year. Overall margins are also higher than the prior year, primarily
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due to the strong recovery in crop nutrition margins in 2007 as fertilizer prices continue to be driven by both
higher commodity prices and a tightening of supply to support increasing corn production in the U.S. for
ethanol production.

In the Company'’s livestock services segment, Hi-Pro’s continuing contribution is expected to further improve
operating results over the course of the fiscal period. While not necessarily indicative of future performance,
the pro-forma trailing twelve month EBITDA to April 30, 2007, adjusted to give effect to the pre-acquisition
EBITDA of Hi-Pro for the three and a half months to August 14, 2008, would add another $2.6 million of
EBITDA to the livestock segment results.

On May 9, 2007, the Company announced that the Board of Directors of the Company had agreed to support
a revised ali cash offer from SWP to acquire all of the Limited Voting Common Shares of AU for $20.50 per
share. Under the offer, holders of Series A convertible preferred shares of AU would also receive $24.00 in
cash per share (plus accrued and unpaid dividends). On the same day, the amended and restated
acquisition agreement entered into between AU and JRI on April 19, 2007 (the “JRI Acquisition Agreement"),
which provided for JRI's offer to acquire the Limited Voting Common Shares of AU at a price of $19.25 per
share, was terminated. JRI also waived its "right to match" the revised SWP offer. Accordingly, as per the
terms of the JR| Acquisition Agreement, the Company paid a termination fee of $35 million to JRI on May 11,
2007.

On May 29, 2007, SWP announced that it had taken up more than 75% of the issued and outstanding
Limited Voting Common Shares of the Company. It is anticipated that the Company will be continued under
the Canada Business Corporation Act on June 13, 2007 and that any remaining shares will be acquired
under a Plan of Arrangement on or about June 15, 2007. Subsequent to the closing of these transactions,
the Company will be de-listed from the Toronto Stock Exchange.
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Use of Non-GAAP Terms

Eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, takeover bid response costs, gains or losses on asset
disposals, loss on settlement of swap, discontinued operations net of tax and unusual items (“EBITDA”) and eamings
before inferest, taxes, takeover bid response costs, gains or losses on assel disposals, loss on seltlement of swap,
discontinued operations net of tax and unusual items ("EBIT’) are provided to assist investors in determining the ability of
the Company to generate cash from operations to cover financial charges before income and expense items from
investing activities, income taxes and items not considered to be in the ordinary course of business. A reconciliation of
such measures to net income is provided in the Consolidated Statements of Eamings, Note 4 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements and in the table below. Certain items are excluded in the determination of such measures as they
are non-cash in nature, income taxes, financing charges or otherwise are not considered to be in the ordinary course of
business. EBITDA and EBIT provide imporiant management informalion conceming business segment performance
since the Company does not alflocate financing charges or income taxes to these individual segments. Such measures
should not be considered in isolation to or as a substitute for {i) net income or loss, as an indicator of the Company’s
operating performance or (ii) cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, as a measure of the
Company’s liquidity.

Net funded debt is provided to assist investors and is used by management in assessing the Company's liquidity position
and is used to monitor how much debt the Company has (excluding the convertible unsecured subordinated debeniures)
after taking into account the Company’s liquid assets such as cash and cash equivalents. A reconciliation of the
measures used to calculate net funded debt is provided in the table below. Such measure should not be considered in
isolation of or as a substitute for current liabilities, short-term debt, or long-ferm debt as a measure of the Company's
indebtedness.

Average net debt fo EBITDA is provided to assist investors and is used by management in order to assess the
Company’s liquidity position and monitor the Company's debt obligations relative to its annualized EBITDA. Average net
debt is calculated by dividing the average net debf as at such date by the EBITDA for the trailing twelve month period
ending on such date. Average net debt as at such dates is calculated by taking the sum of the net funded debt
(calculated as noted above) as at the end of each month during the twelve months ending on such date and dividing it by
12. Net funded debt to capitalization is provided to assist investors and is used by management to determine the
Company’s leverage. The measure is applied nef of cash and cash equivalents, as the Company has the ability and
may elect to use a portion of cash and cash equivalents to refire debt or to incur additional expenditures without
increasing debt. EBITDA to fixed charges is provided to assist investors and is used by management in order to
determine the ability of the Company to service its committed sustaining capital needs and financial obligations from
EBITDA. A reconciliation of each of these measures is provided in the table below.

Such measures do not have any standardized meanings prescnbed by Canadian GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.
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Non-GAAP Terms, Reconciliations and Calculations

{in thousands - excapt percentages and ratios)
(Unaudited) Better
2007 2006 {Worse}

For the trailing hwelve months ending April 30:

Gross profit and net revenue from services $ 512528 § 456,052 12.4%
Operaling, ganeral and administrative expenses (341,088) (334,286) (2.0%)
EBITDA $ 171,440 § 121,766 40.8%
Depreciation and amortizalion (58,587) {58,027) (1.0%)
EBIT $ 112843 § 63,739 77.0%
For the period ended Aprif 30:

Bank and other loans $ 298,031 5 336,097 11.3%
Current portion of fong-term debt 18,642 43,504 54,9%
Long-term Debt 318,413 257,209 (23.8%)
Cash and cash equivalents {60,518) (20,533) 194.7%
Net Funded Debt $ 575568 § 616,277 6.6%
Average Net Debt (Monthly Net Funded Debt/12) $ 494407 § 4850954 {1.7%)
Average Net Debt to EBITDA 2.88 x 3.99 x 1.11pt
Net Funded Debt $ 575568 § 616,277 6.6%
Convertible Bebentures - 105,000 100.0%
Shareholders' Equity 595,449 459 567 {29.6%)
Capitalization $1,171,017  § 1,180,844 0.8%
Net Funded Debt/Capitalization 49.2% 52.2% 3.0pt
Property, plant and equipment expenditures $ 17,233 § 24960 31 0%
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (3.655) {6.214) {41.2%})
Scheduled long-term debt repayments 32,022 39,966 19.9%
interest and securitization expenses 52,329 50,958 (2.7%)
Non-cash interest expense {Note 10) {1.017)

Dividends paid 7,235 6,547 (10.5%)
Current income taxes 605 3,633 83.3%
Fixed Charges $§ 104752 § 119,850 12.6%
EBITDA to Fixed Charges (EBITDA/Fixed Charges) 1.64 1.02 0.62 pt
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
2007 2006 Qctober 31,
As at Aprl 30 (in thousands) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) 2006
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 60,518 $§ 20533 $§ 46,493
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 254,015 200,394 188,760
Inventories 761,783 657,996 407,457
Prepaid expenses 16,292 18,636 10,884
Future income taxes 21,809 17,551 23,333
1,414,417 915,110 676,927
Property, Plant and Equipment 640,879 646,088 658,674
QOther Assets 70,446 83,558 68.823
Goodwill 33,030 21,189 32812
Intangible Asseis 19,273 17,170 19,316
Future Income Taxes 14,299 31,304 4,554
$ 1892344 $ 1.714.419 $ 1,461,106
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Bank and other loans $ 298,03 $ 336,097 $ 133605
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 617,231 473177 320,689
Dividends payable 2,372 1.362 2,467
Current portion of long-term debt 19,642 43,504 21,932
Future income taxes 3,337 2,116 8
940,613 856,256 478,701
Long-term Debt 318,413 257,209 334,301
Convertible Debentures (Note 11) - 105,000 105,000
Other Long-term Liabilities 15,785 35,028 33,639
Future Income Taxes 2,084 459 4,852
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital (Note 7) 567,110 460,567 450,807
Contributed surplus 2,332 2171 2,037
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 2,011 - (421)
Retained earnings (deficit) 23,996 (3,171) 42,180
585,449 459,567 504,603
$ 1,892.344 § 1,714,419 $ 1,461,106

Page 24 of 35 June 7, 2007



REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS - Second Quarter and Six Months ended April 30, 2007

“RUnited
Consolidated Statements of Earnings
Second Quarter Six Months
For the periods ended Apnl 30 (in thousands, except per share amounts)
{Unaudited) 2007 2006 2007 2006
Sales and revenue from services (Note 4) $ B14,555 § 569,815 $ 1,524,303 $ 1,114,200
Gross profit and net revenue from services (Note 4) 122,693 95,681 213,650 175,281
Operating, general and administrative expenses (Note 4) (85,579) (78,154} (168,187) (160,622)
Eamings before the undernoted (Note 4) 7,114 17,527 45,463 14,659
Depreciation and amortization (Note 4) (13,943} {13,916) {27,960) (28,058)
2311 361 17,503 (13,399}
Takeover bid response coslis (Note 12) (5,399 - (8,224) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (1,932) 460 {1,428) 18
Interest and securitization expenses {11,752) {14,528) {26,315) {27,815}
4,088 (10,457 {18,484) {41.196)
Recovery of (provision for) income taxes
Current portion {490) (782) {1,654) (1,257}
Future portion {1,538) 3,222 7,262 13,838
Net eamings (loss) for the period $ 2,060 3 (8,017) $ (12856 3 (28.615)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (Note 1) $ 0.03 3 {0.18) $ (0.24) $ (0.64)
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Accumulated
Other Total
(i thousands) Contributed Comprehensive Retained Shareholders'
(Unaudited) Share Capital Surplus Income (l.oss) Eamings Equity
As at October 31, 2005 $ 460323 § 15983 % - % 28167 & 490,083
Share capital issued 244 - - - 244
Stock-based compensation - 578 - - 578
Dividends declared - - - (2,723) (2,723)
Loss for the period ) - - - {28.,615) (28,615)
As at April 30, 2006 460,567 2,171 - {3,171) 459,567
Share capital issued 240 - - - 240
Stock-based compensation - (134) - - {134}
Currency transiation loss - - (421) - (421)
Dividends declared - - - (3,829} {3,829)
Net eamings for the period - - - 45,180 49,180
As at October 31, 2006 460,807 2,037 421) 42180 504,603
Share capital issued 106,303 {291) - - 106,012
Stock-based compensation : 586 - - 586
Accounting policy change (Note 10) - - (1,084} (912) {1,996}
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation loss - - (151) - (151)
Cash flow hedge gain, net of tax - - 227 - 227
Trade investments gain, net of tax - - 3,440 - 3,440
Dividends declared - - - (4.4186) (4,416)
Loss for the period - - - (12,856) {12,856)
As at April 30, 2007 $ 567110 § 2332 § 2,011 $ 23,896 § 595449

For the period ended Agpril 30, 2007 comprehensive income is a loss of $10,424,000, comprised of the loss for the period of

$12,856,000, and the increase in accumulated other comprehensive income of $2,432,000.

The total of retained eamings and accumulated other comprehensive income is $26,007,000.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Second Quarter Six Months
For the pericds ended April 30 (in thousands)
{Unaudited) 2007 2006 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES;
Net eamings {loss) for the period $ 2060 3 (8.017) $ (12,856) $ (28.615)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 13,943 13,916 27,960 28,058
Non-cash interest expense (Note 10) 163 - 1,017 -
Employee future benefits 41 235 (316) (212)
Investment tax credits - (2.075) - (2.075)
Future income taxes {recovery) 1,559 {3.222) {7,249) (13.838)
Equity loss from investments,
net of distributions 426 128 521 1.505
Stock-based compensation 442 360 586 578
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 1,932 (460) 1,428 (18}
Other long-term liabilities 123 164 247 328
Cash flow provided by (used in) operations 20,689 1,029 11,338 (14,289)
Changes in non-cash working capital 16,286 {10,774) {127,094} (86,2956)
36,975 (9,745) {115,756} (100,585)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (Note 9) - {2,296) (4,850} (3.990)
Property, plant and equipment expenditures {4,125) {6,319} (7,746) (11,607)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 46 2,601 1,471 2,735
increase in other assets (3,502) (367} {7,106} (11,674)
(7,581) {6.381) {18,231) {24,536)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease)} in bank and other loans (54,124) 11,195 164,466 135,282
Proceeds from long-term debt - (4} 2,850 21
Long-term debt repayments {2,145} (7,393} (14,204) (21,921)
Deferred financing expenditures (320} (552} {618) (557)
Decrease in other long-term liabilities {285} (113) (1,011) (180)
Share capital issued 797 165 1,012 244
Dividends paid (2,044) (1,361) (4,511) (3.825)
(58,121} 1,937 147,984 109,064
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (28,727} (14,189) 13,997 (16,057)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 89,246 34,722 46,493 36,590
Cash impact on currency translation account {1} - 28 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 60,518 § 20,533 $ 60,518 § 20,533
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash payments of interest $ (11,460) § (12,834) $ (28,768) S {27,806}
Cash payments of taxes $ {1,465) § {876) $ (2,399) 5§ {3,768}
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
1. Earnings Per Share
For the six months ended Aprif 30 2007 2006
(in thousands, except per share amounts - unaudited) Amount Shares Per Share Amount Shares Per Share
Loss for the period $ (12,856) $(28,615)
Less:

Preferred share dividend {552) (552)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (13,408) 54,878 $  {0.24) $129.187) 45,383 $ (0.64)
For the second quarter ended April 30 2007 2006
(in thousands, except per share amounts - unaudited) Amount Shares Per Share Amount Shares Per Share
Net eamings (loss) for the period $ 2,060 $ (8,017)
Less:

Preferred share dividend (276) (276)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 1,784 59,264 $ 003 $ (8,293) 45,394 $ (0.18)
Add:

Executive stock options 478 -
Diluted eamings (toss) per share $ 1,784 59,742 $ 0.03 $ (8,203) 45,394 $ (0.18)

Basic earnings per share is derived by deducting the pro rata share of annual dividends on preferred shares from eamings for the period and dividing this
total by the weighted average number of Limited Voting Common Shares outstanding for the period.  The effect of potentially dilutive securities (preferred
shares, convertible unsecured subordinated debentures (prior to the conversion and redemption on January 10, 2007) and “in-the-money” executive stock
options) are exciuded if they are anti-dilutive.

2. Accounting Principles

These interim unaudited consolidated financial statements are based on accounting principles consistent
with those used and described in the October 31, 2006 annual consolidated financial statements except as
described in Note 10. All amounts are reported in Canadian dollars unless specifically stated to the contrary.
However, these financial statements do not include ali of the information and disclosures required for annual
financial statement presentation. The interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended October 31, 2006.

3. Seasonal Nature of Business

The Company's earnings follow the seasonal activity pattern of prairie grain production. Activity peaks in the
spring as new crops are sown and in the fall as mature crops are harvested. Sales of Crop Production
Services products (seed, crop nutrients and crop protection products) peak during May through July,
corresponding with the start of the growing season, followed by increased levels of crop nutrient sales in the
late fall. Although relatively steady throughout the year, Livestock Services feed sales tend to peak during
the winter months as feed consumption increases. Financial Markets agency fees follow the related pattern
of sales of the underlying activity of either Crop Production Services or Livestock Services. Sales patterns
have a significant impact on the level of earnings and generally result in lower earnings throughout the early
months of the fiscal year, with significant increases occurring in the third quarter ended July 31.
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4. Segment Information
Second Quarter Six Months
For the periods ended April 30 (in thousands)
{Unaudited) 2007 2006 2007 2006
SALES AND REVENUE FROM SERVICES
Grain Handling 573,517 411,183 § 1,113,912 § 837,886
Crop Production Services 134,228 94,147 189,054 145,835
Livestock Services 116,430 71,974 238,402 143,286
Financial Markets 1,309 1,562 3,809 3,088
825,484 578,866 1,545,177 1,131,995
Less: Intersegment Sales* {10,929) (9.051) (20,874} (17,795}
814,555 569,815 § 1,524,303 § 1,114,200
GROSS PROFIT AND NET REVENUE FROM SERVICES
Grain Handling 65,866 61,111 $ 124602 § 115493
Crop Production Services 35,083 198,260 43,978 27,560
Livestock Services 20,435 13,748 41,261 28,240
Financial Markets 1,309 1,562 3,809 3.988
122,693 95681 $ 213,650 $ 175281
COPERATING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Grain Handling (33,110) (36638 $ (68,922) $ (75.B51)
Crop Production Services (24,897) (23,265) (47,413} (47,306)
Livestock Services {12,551) (8.683) ({25,865) (17.839)
Financial Markets (166) 137 {1,300) (1.388)
Corporate (14,855) (9.704) {24,687) (18,438)
{85,579) (78,154) § (468,187) $ (160,622)
EBITDA
Grain Handling 32,756 24473 $ 55680 § 35,842
Crop Production Services 10,186 (4,006) (3,435) (19,746)
Livestock Services 7,884 5,065 15,396 10,401
Financial Markets 1,143 1,699 2,509 2,600
Corporate {14,855) (9.704) (24,687) (18.438)
37,114 17,527 § 45463 § 14,659
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Grain Handling (6,793) 6711y $ (13,599 $ (13.444)
Crop Production Services (4,275) (4,769} (8,657) (9.574)
Livestock Services (1,673) (968) (3,243) (1,956)
Financial Markets (186) (74) (352) (166)
Corporate {1,016) (1,394) (2,009) (2.818)
(13,943} (13,916} § {(27,960) $ (28,058)
EBIT
Grain Handling 25,963 17,762 § 42,081 3 26,398
Crop Production Services 5,911 (8,775} {12,092) (29,320}
Livestock Services 6,211 4,097 12,053 8,445
Financial Markets 957 1.625 2,157 2434
Corporate {15,871} (11,098) {26,696) (21,356)
23,171 3611 $ 17,503 $  (13,399)
*INTERSEGMENT SALES
Grain Handling (10,835) (9,051) $ (20,792) % (17.799)
Crop Production Services {44) - {82) -
{10,929} (9.051) $ (20,874) & (17,785
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5. Securitization

At April 30, 2007, grain held for the account of the Canadian Wheat Board is reported net of securitized
amounts of $68.6 million (2006 - $55.2 million). The table below summarizes certain cash flows related to
the transfer of receivables during the period:

As at Apni 30, 2007 {in thousends)

{Unaudited)
Proceeds from new securitizations $ 77,000
Proceeds from collections not reinvested 3 (8,439)

The net cost of these transactions is included in interest and securitization expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings.

6. Bank and Other Loans

On April 16, 2007, XCAN Far East Ltd, a wholly-owned Japanese subsidiary of the Company, replaced its
U.8.$10 million revolving credit facility which matured on March 31, 2007, with a U.S.$15 miillion revolving
credit facility at 0.75% per annum over London Interbank Offer Rate maturing February 29, 2008. The
revolving credit facility is secured by a stand-by Letter of Credit as well as the underlying security described
in Note 8 of the October 31, 2006 annual consolidated financial statements.

7. Share Capital

The table below summarizes the issued and outstanding Limited Voting Common Shares and securities
convertible into Limited Voting Common Shares:

As at Apnil 30
(Unaudited} 2007 2006
Issued and outstanding Limited Voting Commen Shares 59,307,363 45,394,833

Securities convertible into Limited Voling Common Shares:

Series A Convertible Preferred shares, non-voting, $1 dividend

per share, cumulative, convertible {1:1 basis), callable at $24 1,104,369 1,104,369
Stock options 872,207 1,055,653
9% convertible unsecured subordinated debentures, maturing

November 30, 2007, convertible at 133.3333 shares per - 14,000,000

$1,000 principal amount (Note 11)

61,283,939 61.554.855

As at April 30, 2007, the Company had reserved 270.613 Limited Voting Common Shares (2006 - 179,980) for granting under the Executive Stock Option
Plan and 55,971 Limited Voting Common Shares (2006 — 82,823} for granting under the Directors® Share Compansation Pian.
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Stock options outstanding at April 30, 2007 have a range of exercise prices from $7.10 to $11.50 and a
weighted average life of 5.92 years.

Weighted

Average
For the six months ended April 30, 2007 Number of Exercise
(Unaudited) Options Price
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 1,047,140 $ 9.16
Exercised {68,813) 9.70
Expired (82,120) 10.20
Forfeited (24,000 7.65
Outstanding at end of period 872,207 $ 9.04
Exercisable at end of period 697.511 3 9.39

8. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

a) Letters of Credit — The Company has provided banking letters of credit to third parties for activities that
are inherent in the nature of the agriculture industry. The terms range in duration and expire at various
dates from May 2007 to August 2008. The amounts vary depending on underlying business activity or
the specific agreements in place with the third parties. As at April 30, 2007, the outstanding letters of
credit were $56.3 million (2006 - $68.0 million).

b) Indemnification of Accounts Receivable — Under the terms of an agreement with a Canadian
Schedule [ chartered bank (as described in Note 4 of the October 31, 2006 annual consolidated financial
statements), the Company indemnifies the bank for 50% of future losses under Agricore United Financial
(“AU Financial") to a maximum limit of five percent of the aggregate qualified portfolio balance. The
Company’s aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the size of the underlying portfolio. As at
April 30, 2007, the Company has provided $5.0 million (2006 - $4.5 million) for actual and expected
future losses.

Under the terms of an agreement with a Canadian Schedule | chartered bank (as described in Note 4 of
the Qctober 31, 2006 annual consolidated financial statements), the Company indemnifies the bank for
credit losses under Unifeed Financia! based on the first 20% to 33% of new credit issued on an individual
account, dependant on the account's underlying credit rating, with losses in excess of these amounts
shared on an equal basis with the bank up to five percent on the aggregate qualified portfolio balance.
The Company's aggregate indemnity will vary at any given time with the credit rating of the underlying
accounts and the aggregate credit outstanding. As at April 30, 2007, the Company has provided
$472,000 (2006 - $393,000) for actual and expected future losses.

c) Loan Guarantees — The Company is contingently liable under several guarantees given to third-party
lenders who have provided long-term financing to certain independent hog producers. As at April 30,
2007, the current outstanding balance of these guarantees was $3.2 million {2006 - $3.6 million). These
guarantees reduce as the underlying loans are repaid and expire between 2009 and 2014.
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9. Business Acquisitions

Effective December 18, 2006, the Company purchased the operating assets of Green Acres Fertilizer
Service (Major) Inc., Green Acres Chemicals Ltd. and Kerrobert Agro Services Ltd. The results of operations
of these businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. As the
asset purchases have recently been completed, the purchase price allocation between goodwill and
intangible assets will be finalized in a subsequent period. The transactions are summarized as follows:

For the six months ended Apnl 30, 2007 (in thousands}

{Unaudited)

Net assets acquired:
Accounts receivable $ 1,227
Inventories 883
Property, plant & egquipment 2,387
Goodwill and intangibles 353

Cash consideration $ 4,850

10. Accounting Policy Changes

Financial Instruments/ Hedges/ Comprehensive income - Effective November 1, 20086, the Company
adopted Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Section 3855, Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement; Section 3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation; Section 3865, Hedges;
and Section 1530, Comprehensive Income.

These changes in accounting policy were applied retroactively without restatement of comparative financial
statements, with the exception of the reclassification of the currency translation account of $421,000 to
accumulated other comprehensive income. As at November 1, 2006, the Company has recorded
adjustments, net of tax, to retained eamings and accumulated other comprehensive income of $912,000 and
$1,084,000, respectively. The Company reports comprehensive income and its components, net of tax, in
the Statements of Shareholders’ Equity.

a} Significant Accounting Policies - The Company initially recognizes financial assets, financial liabilities
and derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments
are measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost depending on the financial instrument classification.

Financial and non-financial derivative instruments are used by the Company to reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. In the normal
course, the Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for derivative trading
purposes. Any change in value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting is reported in
earnings.

The Company has a cross currency interest rate swap designated as a fair value hedge and an interest
rate swap designated as a cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge accounting and as such, the swaps are
documented and subjected to an effectiveness test on a quarterly basis. To the extent that the hedging
relationship is effective, a gain or loss arising from the hedged risk in a fair value hedge adjusts the
carrying value of the hedged item and is reflected in earnings, offset by a change in the fair value of the
underlying derivative. A gain or loss arising from the hedged risk in a cash flow hedge, to the extent that
the hedging relationship is effective, is deferred and included in other comprehensive income until such
time as the hedged item affects earnings. Any ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging item
is recognized immediately in earnings.

Transaction costs, defined as incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability, adjust the carrying amount of the underlying instrument. These
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b)

costs are amortized over the instrument’s remaining expected life using the effective interest rate method
and are included in interest and securitization expenses.

Financial Instruments - The following table presents the carrying amount and the fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments and non-financial derivatives. Amortized cost is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. Fair value is based on quoted market prices when available. However,
when financial instruments lack an available trading market, fair value is determined using
management's estimates and is calculated using market factors for instruments with similar
characteristics and risk profiles. These amounts represent point-in-time estimates and may not reflect
fair value in the future. These calculations are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and are a matter
of significant judgment.

Assets (Liabilties) Assets (Liabilitles)
Carried at Cost/Amortized Cost Carried at Fair Vale

As at Apnl 30, 2007 (in thousands)

(Unaugited) Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 62524 $ 62,524
Foreign Exchange Contracts $ (2,006)
Accounts Receivable 254,015 254,015
Other Assets
Long-term receivables 11,607 11,607
Trade investments” 7.245
Bank and Other Loans (298,031) (298.031)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses {626,699) (626.699)
Commodity Contracts and Exchange-traded Derivatives 9,468
Pividends Payable (2,372) (2,372)
Current Portion of Long-term Debt (19,642) (19,642)
Long-term Debt (318.413) (340.413)
Other Long-term Liabilities
Fair value hedging derivative (1,259)
Cash flow hedging derivative (1,438)

* Excludes equity-accounted investments

The following summarizes the methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the
Company’s financial instruments:

» The fair value of short-term financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts due to the
relatively short period to maturity. These include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
bank and other loans, accounts payable and accrued expenses, dividends payable and the current
portion of long-term debt.

« The fair value of long-term receivables is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows at
market interest rates for loans with similar credit risk.

+ Trade investments are valued using active trading market prices, or are carried at cost if the fair
value cannot be reliably measured due to the [ack of an active trading market.

¢ The fair value of long-term debt with fixed interest rates is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using the risk free interest rate on an instrument with similar terms adjusted for an
appropriate risk premium for the Company's credit profile. Long-term debt with a variable interest
rate is carried at cost which reflects fair value as the interest rate is the market rate available to the
Company.

+ Foreign exchange contracts, commoedity contracts and exchange-traded derivatives are valued
based on closing market quotations. The fair value of other derivatives is determined using a
valuation model that incorporates current market and contractual prices of the underlying
instruments, discounted future cash fiows, yield curves and volatility factors.
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The Company manages risk and risk exposures through a combination of insurance, derivative financial
instruments, a system of internal and disclosure controls and sound operating practices. The Company
manages interest rate risk and currency risk on borrowings by using a combination of cash instruments,
futures, options, forward rate agreements and a mixture of fixed and floating rates. The Company
manages exposure to potential credit risk in respect of trade receivables through ongoing credit reviews
of all significant contracts and analysis of payment and loss history. The absence of significant financial
concentration of such receivables limits its exposure to credit risk. Credit risk exposure is also limited
through an arrangement with a Canadian Schedule | chartered bank which provides for limited recourse
to the Company for credit losses on accounts receivable under AU Financiat and Unifeed Financial.

11. Convertible Unsecured Subordinated Debentures

On November 30, 2006, the Company announced its intention to redeem the 9% convertible unsecured
subordinated debentures (“Debentures"} on January 10, 2007, prior to which securityholders retained the
right to voluntarily convert the Debentures in exchange for Limited Voting Common Shares. Following the
conversion and redemption of the Debentures on January 10, 2007, the Debentures were de-listed from the
Toronto Stock Exchange. The Company issued 13,780,758 Limited Voting Common Shares in exchange for
$105 million principal amount of Debentures and paid $801,000 of accrued interest in cash for the period from
November 30, 2006 to the date of voluntary conversion or redemption, as applicable.

12. Takeover Bid Response Costs

For the six months ended April 30, 2007, the Company incurred $8.2 million in financial, legal and
shareholder communication costs related to the offers to purchase the Company’s outstanding Limited
Voting Common Shares and Series A Convertible Preferred shares (Note 14).

13. Sale of Vancouver Terminal

On May 12, 2006, a trustee was appointed to divest the Company's former United Grain Growers Limited
Vancouver grain terminal ("Vancouver Terminal”) in accordance with a consent agreement {“Consent
Agreement”) between Agricore United and the Commissioner of Competition dated October 17, 2002. The
Consent Agreement was entered into in connection with the merger of United Grain Growers Limited and
Agricore Cooperative Ltd. to form Agricore United and required the Company to divest a terminal at the Port
of Vancouver,

On April 18, 2007, the Company announced it had agreed to sell the Vancouver Terminal assets for $18
million to Terminal West Ltd. effective June 30, 2007. To reflect the fair value of the assets the Company
recorded an impairment loss of $1.6 million included in gain (loss) on disposal of assets in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings.

The Company may have obligations under its lease and surrender agreement with the Vancouver Port
Authority with respect to soil and groundwater conditions at its Vancouver Terminal site. Investigations into
groundwater conditions are in process and it is not yet known if remedial action will be necessary. As such,
potential costs cannot be determined.

The Company is contingently liable for termination severance payments to certain employees. The
occurrence of the confirming events is not determinable.
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14. Subsequent Events

a)

b)

€)

Change of Control - On May 9, 2007, the Company announced that the Board of Directors of the
Company had agreed to support a revised all cash offer from Saskatchewan Wheat Pool ("SWP") to
acquire all outstanding Limited Voting Common Shares of the Company for $20.50 per share and an
offer to acquire all of the Series A Convertible Preferred shares for $24.00 per share plus accrued and
unpaid dividends.

On May 9, 2007, the Company terminated the Amended and Restated Acquisition Agreement with
James Richardson International Limited (“JRI"), whereby JRI offered to acquire the Limited Voting
Common Shares of the Company for $19.25 per share. 1n accordance with the terms of the agreement,
the Company paid a termination fee of $35 million to JRI on May 11, 2007.

On May 29, 2007, SWP announced it had taken-up more than 75% of the issued and outstanding
Limited Voting Common Shares of the Company, effecting a change of control of the Company.
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement dated May 9, 2007 between the Company and SWP, the
Company will hold two special meetings of holders of Limited Voting Common Shares on June 13, 2007
to consider continuance of the Company under the Canada Business Corporations Act and a Plan of
Arrangement (“Arrangement”) involving the Company and its securityholders whereby the remaining
shares will be acquired by SWP. As SWP holds sufficient shares to approve the continuance and
Arrangement it is anticipated these will be completed on or about June 15, 2007. Upon completion of the
Arrangement, the Company will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of SWP and will be de-listed from the
Toronto Stock Exchange.

On May 28, 2007, the Company paid additional takeover bid response costs of $7.6 million to its financial
advisors.

Bank and Other Loans and Long-Term Debt - On May 25, 2007, the Company received consent from
its lenders to extend the Company’s revolving bank loan facility and the Term B Loan, respectively, on
the same terms as described in Notes 8 and 9 of the October 31, 2006 annual consolidated financial
statements to the earlier of August 31, 2007 and the amalgamation of the Company and SWP. The
lenders also consented to increasing the revolving bank loan facility from $300 million to $400 miflion
during this period.

Following the change of control of Agricore United, on May 30, 2007 the Company issued notices of
redemption for all of the outstanding Term Notes, Series A Notes, Series B Notes and Cascadia Series B
Notes. The aggregate redemption price of the Notes including prepayment penalties is about $218
million.

Contingent Liabilities arising from a Change of Control - The Company is contingently liable under
retention agreements with certain executives and employees for payment of termination benefits upon a
change of control and termination for reasons other than cause, as defined in the agreements, within a
specified period. While a change of control has occurred the likelihood of the confirming events is not
determinable.

The Company, its subsidiaries and other entities in which it owns an interest are parties to various
financing and operational contracts, some of which may provide a right of termination or other remedy in
favour of third parties upon occurrence of a change of control. Due to the extent of such arrangements
and the uncertainty whether these provisions will be exercised, the occurrence of the confirming events
is not determinable.

Share Capital and Stock-Based Compensation - Under the terms of the Executive Stock Option Plan
the unvested stock options became exercisable immediately prior to the change of control. On May 28,
2007, 801,982 options, representing all of the issued and outstanding options, were exercised. The
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vesting of Restricted Stock Units was accelerated by the change of control and the obligation retated to
the 835,027 Restricted Stock Units outstanding was settled by the Company immediately thereafter.

15. Future Accounting Policy Changes

The Accounting Standards Board of the CICA recently issued Section 1535, Capital Disclosures, Section
3862, Financial Instruments — Disclosures and Section 38583, Financial Instruments — Presentation, all
appticable for annual or interim periods beginning on or after October 31, 2007. Section 1535 introduces
new disclosure requirements surrounding an entity’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
Sections 3862 and 3863 build on Section 3861 and provide presentation and disclosure requirements for
financial instruments.

16. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to canform to current period presentation.

Supplementary Shareholder Information

For the periods ended April 30 Second Quarter Six Months
(Unaudited)
Trading Activity (on Toronto Stock Exchange) 2007 2006 2007 2006
Limited Voting Common Shares (Symbol: AU.LV)
High $ 20.70 $ 8.99 $ 20.70 $ 8.99
Low $ 11.75 $ 7.33 $ 8.08 $ 6.40
Close $ 20.33 § 8.20 $ 20.33 3 8.20
Volume 16,098,373 2,717,518 25,960,310 6,803,708

Saries A Preferred shares (Symbol. AU.PR.A)

High $ 24.00 3 16.20 $ 24.00 $ 16.20
Low $ 20.35 3 15.10 $ 15.70 3 14.75
Close $ 2186 3 15.67 $ 23.88 $ 15.67
Volume 70,690 9,753 126,888 18,113
9% convartible unsecured subordinated debentures (Symbol: AU.DB)
High {per $100 principal} $ - 3 119.01 $ 162.00 $ 120.95
Low {per $100 principal} $ - 5 108.00 $ 125.00 $ 102.01
Close (per $100 principal} $ - 3 109.86 $ - 8 109.86
Volume - 302,000 2,828,000 2,078,000
As at Apnil 30
{Unaudited)
Book value per share $ 9.86 3 g .88
Fully diluted book value per share $ 9.84 $ 9.33

* Following the conversion and redemption of the Debentures on January 10, 2007, the Debentures were de-listed from the Toronto Stock Exchange

Book vaiue per share is derived by dividing the shareholders' equity at the end of the period by the total number of Limited Voting Common Shares
outstanding at the end of the period as if the Series A Preferred shares had been converted on a 1.1 basis. The fully diluted book value per share is
dernived by dividing the shareholders’ equity (including the Debentures and the value of executive stock options) at the end of the period by the total number
of Limitad Voling Common Shares outstanding at the end of the period as if the Series A Preferred shares, executive stock options and the Debentures had

been fully converted.
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